Case 1:04-cv-07199 Document 306  Filed 06/26/2007 Page 1 of 52

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS

and HOSPIRA, INC.,

Defendants.

EASTERN DIVISION
)
MYLA NAUMAN, )
JANE ROLLER, and )
MICHAEL LOUGHERY, )
)
Plaintiffs, )
) No. 04-C-7199
V. )
) Judge Gettleman
ABBOTT LABORATORIES ) Magistrate Judge Brown
)
)
)
)

Plaintiffs Consolidated Response in Opposition to
Defendants Motions for Summary Judgment (Redacted Version)

Steven M. Sprenger Michael M. Mulder

Mark A. Amadeo Jamie S. Franklin

SPRENGER & LANG, PLLC MEITES MULDER MOLLICA & GLINK
1400 Eye Street, N.W., Suite 500 20 S. Clark Street, Suite 1500
Washington, DC 20005 Chicago, IL 60603

(202) 772-1160 (312) 263-0272



Case 1:04-cv-07199 Document 306  Filed 06/26/2007 Page 2 of 52

Table of Contents
TABLE OF AUTHORITIES .......ooiiiiiiieite ettt sttt ettt s i
INTRODUGCTION. .....eouttittiiteteeit ettt ettt ettt st ettt sttt st sat et et sht e bt satesbeebeeatesbeenaesasenaeen
STATEMENT OF FACTS ..ottt sttt sttt sttt et st sbe et e e b ea
A. Abbott was intensely concerned about the cost of benefits ...........ccocceeeviieinieennneen.
B. Abbott simultaneously launched its efforts to reduce the cost of benefits and
to analyze the potential spin-off of a large part of its workforce ...........cocccevnieennnee.
C. Abbott embarked on a detailed analysis of how to handle the costs associated
with HPD employees retirement benefits ..........coccueevviiiniiiiniiiiniieinieeesiee e
D. Abbott announced the spin while reassuring employees about their retirement
DENETIES ..ot e

E. Abbott, fearing that the HPD employees would retire en masse, pondered its

options for reducing beNefits COSLS.....couuiirriiiiiiiiriiiiniieeeie e
F. Abbott s solution was to spin the pension obligation and institute a no-hire

policy in conjunction with the new company ..........cccccceeevveerrieeniieeniieenie e
G. Reducing the cost of benefits at the new company was a prerequisite for the

SPIN=OET Lttt et e et

H. By the fall of 2003, Abbott and the new company s executives had decided
to freeze the pension plan and eliminate retiree medical benefits .............ccocceeenee.

L Abbott concealed the truth about benefits to the HPD employees until three
months after the SPIn date ..........coocieiiiiiiiiiiiiii e

ARGUMENT ...t

L ABBOTT IS NOT ENTITLED TO SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON

COUNT L.t st
A. Plaintiffs have presented evidence that Abbott intended to interfere
WIth BENETIts . ....cooiiiiiiiiiiii

i1



Case 1:04-cv-07199 Document 306  Filed 06/26/2007 Page 3 of 52

i Evidence that HPD had ERISA-related characteristics that

affected ADDOIt § AECISTON ..........cccccuvueeeeeeiiieeeeciiieeeecieeeeeevee e 16
ii. Additional evidence showing that benefits costs were a
motivating factor in the decision to spin off HPD ............................. 18

Abbott s purported business justification under the McDonnell
Douglas burden-shifting analysis is not credible...........cccoceeeviienniiennieennnee. 20

IL ABBOTT IS NOT ENTITLED TO SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON

COUNT IL.eieeeete ettt sttt ettt et sae b e esneenaeeas 23
A. Plaintiffs claim 1S NOt MOOL........ccccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeite e 23
B. Section 510 applies to no-hire claims .........cooceeeriiiiniiiiniiieiieceeeeeeeee 26

II. HOSPIRA IS NOT ENTITLED TO SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON

COUNT IIL..coioieeiteteeeet ettt sttt et sttt st e be e saeenaeens 27
A. The existence of a discriminatory policy is undisputed.......cc.cccceevveerriveennee. 28
B. McDonnell Douglas does NOt apPlY .....cccueeeviiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieceeceeeeceee e 29
C. Hospira fails to provide legitimate, nondiscriminatory reasons..................... 30
i Hospira s policy had nothing to do with maintaining stability ......... 31

ii. Hospira s policy was intended to prevent employees from
FECCIVING DENESILS «..ooeeveeeeeeiiee ettt e e e e e e aaaea e 32
D. The Court should ignore Hospira s belated affirmative defense ................... 33

IV.  ABBOTT IS NOT ENTITLED TO SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON
COUNT IV .o 36

A.

CONCLUSION......

Abbott had a fiduciary duty to inform the HPD employees of the
decisions it made regarding their retirement benefits ..........ccccceevvveerneeennee. 37

The class members were harmed by the omissions and
MISTEPIESENLATIONS. ¢ ..eeeveeutieeiteeiee et et et et et e st e eneeseeeereesateeneesaneereenanees 42



Case 1:04-cv-07199 Document 306  Filed 06/26/2007 Page 4 of 52

Table of Authorities

Cases
Adams v. Lockheed Martin, No. 04-6204, 2006 WL 2430047

(6™ CL. AUZ. 21, 2006) ..o 41
Ames v. American National Can Co., 170 F.3d 751 (7th Cir. 1999) ..o, 41
Ames v. American National Can Co., 1997 WL 733893, No. 96 C 8276

(NDIIL, NOV. 7, 1997 ettt ettt st ettt e eaean 40
Andes v. Ford Motor. Co, 70 F.3d 1332 (D.C. Cir. 1995) ....cciiiiiiiieeiieeeeeeeeieeeee e, 15-18
Anweiler v. American Elec. Power Service Corp., 3 F.3d 986 (7th Cir. 1993) .o, 38
Baker v. Kingsley, No. 03 C 1750, 2006 WL 2927606 (N.D. IIl. Oct. 10, 2006)..........cccverueenne.e. 14
Becker v. Mack Trucks, Inc., 281 F.3d 372 (3d Cir. 2002) ....ccoovuvreeeeeieeeeeieeeeeee e 26
Blaw Knox Retirement Income Plan, v. White Consol, Indus., Inc., 998 F.2d 1155

(B I 1993) .. vveveeeieeeees et 15fn 6
Brosted v. Unum Life Insurance Co. of America, 421 F.3d 459 (7™ Cir. 2005) .......covevvuee.... 36-37
Coleman v. General Electric Co., 643 F.Supp. 1229 (E.D. Tenn. 1986) .....cccccccverveenene 41 fn 15
Commonwealth Edison v. Beach, 382 F.3d 656 (7th Cir. 2004) ..., 38-39
Deeming v. American Standard, Inc., 905 F.2d 1124 (7th Cir. 1990) .....cccvevvviveeviieeieeennne 15,22
Dister v. Continental Group, Inc., 859 F.2d 1108 (2d Cir. 1988) .....cccvvieeiiieriieeiieeieeeieeeeene 15
Eichornv. AT&T Corp., -- F.3d --, No. 05-5461, 2007 WL 1574869

(Bd Cir. May 31, 2007)..cueeeeeieeieeieeie ettt ettt et sttt ettt et e aee st e te st e sbeentesneenseensesnean 25
Eichorn v. AT&T, Corp., 84 F.3d 644 (3rd CIE. 2007 )i 25
Eichorn v. AT&T Corp. 248 F.3d 131 (3d Cir. 2001) ...cevieiiieiieieeeeeeeeieee e 25-27
Fletcher v. ZLB Behring, LLC, No. 05 C 2695, 2006 WL 218164

(N.D. TL Jan. 27, 2000) ....c.eeoueeieieeieeiienie ettt ettt et et e eesbeeeeseeesaeensesneenseensesnean 25
Gavalik v. Continental Can Co., 812 F.2d 834 (3d Cir. 1987) ..cccccuvvieeeiieeeciiee e 15,27

1v



Case 1:04-cv-07199 Document 306  Filed 06/26/2007 Page 5 of 52

Harzewski v. Guidant Corporation, F.3d , No. 06-3752, 2007 WL 1598097

(7" Cir. JUNE 5, 2007) wovvvvverereiermeessneeesssesessseessssesssssessssssessesssssssses st ssssssssssesssssnees 38
Hensley v. P.H. Glatfelter Co., No. 1:04-CV-200, 2005 WL 3158033

(W.D.N.C. November 28, 2005) .......uuueiiiieeieeiiriieeeeeeeeeeciirreeeeeeeeesecirrereeeeeeeeesavraneeeas 42-43
Hudson v. Chicago Transit Auth., 375 F.3d 552 (7th Cir. 2004).....cccccviieieciiieeeeiiee e 21
Inter-Modal Rail Employees Ass n v. Atchison, Topeka & Sante Fe Ry Co.,

520 ULS. 510 (1997) ettt sttt sttt st s 15
Isbell v. Allstate Ins. Co., 418 F.3d 788 (7th Cir. 2005) oo 16
Kamler v. H/N Telecommunication Services, 305 F.3d 672 (7th Cir. 2002) ..ccooeeveeennnnn. 36-37, 42
Kowalskiv. L & F Products, 82 F.3d 1283 (3d Cir. 1996).......ccvvveiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e 21
Lessard v. Applied Risk Mgmt., 307 F.3d 1020 (9™ Cir. 2002) .....ovueveeveeeeeeeeeeeeeerreans 29, 30, 36
Matthews v. Chevron Corp., 362 F.3d 1172 (9th Cir. 2004) e 26
Olitsky v. Spencer Gifts, Inc., 964 F.2d 1471 (5™ Cir. 1992)......vveemreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen 15
Phelps v. Field Real Estate Co., 991 F.2d 645 (10th Cir. 1993) .....cooviiiiiiiiiieeee e, 16
Pickering v. USX Corp., 809 F. Supp. 1501 (D. Utah 1992) ......cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiceieeeeee 15
Plummer v. Consolidated City of Indianapolis, Marion Co., In.,

2004 WL 2278740 (S.D. Ind. Aug. 17, 2004)....c.c.cooeriirieninieneeenieneeeeeeseeeeens 41 fn 15
Rowe v. Allied Chemical Hourly Employees Pension Plan, 915 F.2d 266

(9™ CE. 1990) . vvvveiveerereeeseeessseeesseeeessse s sss st 35
Salus v. GTE Directories Service Corp., 104 F.3d 131 (7th Cir. 1997) ...cccvvvveeerieeanee 16, 20-21
Simpson v. Ernst & Young, 879 F. Supp. 802, (S.D. Ohio 1994) ....ccccveiviiiiniiiiiiiceeeeiee, 22
Street v. Ingalls Mem. Hosp., No. 06 C 2963, 2007 WL 844619

(N.D. TIL. Mar. 15, 2007) c.ceeueeruerienitenieetenieenie ettt sttt ettt et sttt st sae et saeenaes 25
Unida v. Levi Strauss & Co., 986 F.2d 970 (5th Cir. 1993) ....cvvveeiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeveeee. 18 fn 7

\%



Case 1:04-cv-07199 Document 306  Filed 06/26/2007 Page 6 of 52

Varity Corp. v. Howe, 516 U.S. 489 (1996) .......uvieieeiiieeeieee ettt e e infra

Statutes and Rules

2O ULS.CL § TTAD .ttt s st infra
29 U.S.C. § TI32(2)(3) eeeverueeueeireieieiesieete ettt ettt sttt ettt s st 24
Other Authorities

IRS General Council Memorandum, GCM 39824, 1990 WL 698027 (IRS GCM)................. 34-35

Nor Rhyme Nor Reason: Simplifying Defined Contribution Plans,
49 Buffalo L. Rev. 741 (2001) ..cc.cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceccccc 35fn 13

vi



Case 1:04-cv-07199 Document 306  Filed 06/26/2007 Page 7 of 52

INTRODUCTION

On April 30, 2004, Abbott Laboratories ( Abbott ) spun off the employees in its Hospital
Products Division and related businesses ( HPD ) to create a new company called Hospira, Inc.
( Hospira ). The evidence developed in this case proves that Abbott knew that HPD s
demographics were skewed toward older employees with longer service than Abbott s average,
and that by spinning HPD, Abbott achieved its goal of reducing the number of participants in its
Annuity Retirement Plan ( ARP ) plan and cutting out a large percentage of the more-expensive
employees who were soon to become eligible for valuable retiree medical and early retirement
benefits. Then, in order to preserve these cost savings, Abbott barred the employees from being
rehired for two years, after which time they could return only as new hires, thereby cutting off
their bridging rights under the ARP. Hospira aided Abbott s scheme by adopting its own no-hire
policy under which it refused to hire any retirement-eligible HPD employees who had chosen to
retire from Abbott before the spin date. The impact of the spin, the no-hire policies, and Abbott s
refusal to allow Hospira employees to bridge back into the ARP was devastating to the spun
employees, many of whom were retirement-eligible and were forced to give up their rights to
begin receiving vested employment benefits under Abbott s pension plan in order to be hired by
Hospira.

The HPD spin depended from the very beginning on the premise that the new company
would not offer a pension plan or retiree medical benefits, and that, in fact, it would not be
financially capable of doing so. However, in a cynical ploy to ensure that the HPD workers went
quietly to Hospira to provide it with a ready-made, trained workforce, Abbott concealed this
crucial information and placated the employees by repeatedly telling them that Hospira would
consider all the options and decide on its own retirement benefits plans after the spin date.

In the face of overwhelming evidence supporting plaintiffs claims, defendants now ask
the Court to agree that all of the material facts in this case are undisputed and that they all weigh
in Abbott s and Hospira s favor. In fact, defendants go so far as to aver that Abbott never gave
the slightest consideration to the cost of benefits when implementing the HPD spin  a position

that defies belief, since the evidence shows that Abbott was intensely concerned with the cost of
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benefits company-wide during the time period leading up to the spin. The record developed in
discovery reveals that all the major factual issues in the case are heavily in dispute, and,
moreover, that plaintiffs can prove that Abbott and Hospira violated section 510 of ERISA and
that Abbott breached its fiduciary duties to the class.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

A. Abbott was intensely concerned about the cost of benefits.

At the end of 2002, Abbott s management began to realize that benefits costs were
soaring and that the Board of Directors must be informed. On December 12 and 13, 2002,
Abbott s top mangers met with its Board for two days, at which time Abbott s CFO, Thomas
Freyman, presented financial updates for the company, and Abbott s CEO, Miles White,
discussed challenges that the Company faces over the next few years and presented strategic
options being considered by management to adequately address [them]. Abt Ex. 33 at
A023823." Senior management also highlighted the escalating [pension] costs that the Company
faces. Id.

Freyman presented a lengthy analysis of the status of the company s pension plan,
revealing _ to the Board. Abt. Ex. 34 ( Pension Update ). He
explained that the combination of steadily increasing pension obligations to participants,
declining stock market returns, and minimal funding requirements had caused Abbott s plan to
o tromm |
-. Id. at A023293-99; Abt. Ex. 72 (Freyman Tr.) at 21-22. The bad news continued as
Freyman told the Board that Abbott s accumulated benefit obligations ( ABO ) to plan

participants had risen to such an extent that the company was required to _
Y . Ex. 34 at A023306.
To make matters worse. | NN

'"Wherever possible, in order to avoid filing duplicate materials, plaintiffs cite to exhibits or
statements of fact already on file by Abbott or Hospira. Such citations are designated as follows: Abt. Ex.
__ (Abbott s exhibits); Abt SMF{ __ (Abbott s Statement of Material Facts); Hsp Ex. __ (Hospira s
exhibits); and Hsp SMF { __ (Hospira s Statement of Material Facts). Citations to Plaintiffs Statement
of Additional Material Facts are designated as SAMF {__, and citations to plaintiffs exhibits are
designated as Pl. Ex. __.

2
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Y /. at A023304.

While unveiling Abbott s benefits woes to the Board of Directors, White and Freyman
also assured the Board that Abbott management was considering strategic options to address

the challenges the company faced. As White testified, he and Freyman had already begun to

I ot Ex. 87 (White Tr.) at 18-23.

B. Abbott simultaneously launched its efforts to reduce the cost of benefits and
to analyze the potential spin-off of a large part of its workforce.

The Board of Directors was not pleased with the _
_. As Judy Whinfrey, who managed the Abbott account for
Hewitt Associates ( Hewitt ), explained to her staff, _
_ Pl Ex. 1 at X011717. The Board meeting prompted senior

management to quickly step up its efforts to look for benefits cost savings. Pl. Ex. 2 (Williams
Tr.) at 103-105.

By January 2003, Abbott, with Hewitt s assistance, had begun a retirement strategy
project aimed at cutting benefits costs. Pl. Ex. 3 at X002623-26; P1. Ex. 1 at X011717, 11723-
25. In late January 2003, Hewitt reported to Abbott on the current state of its pension plans,
noting that demographics revealed an aging workforce. P1. Ex. 11 at HEW000284. Hewitt
warned that the demographics of the workplace and the growing number of participants in the
ARP were putting cost pressure on the benefits plans, and it provided Abbott with a graphic
depiction of the increase in the value of benefits under Abbott s pension plan when employees
turn 50 and become eligible for early retirement. As the following excerpt from the Hewitt report

shows, costs fairly leap off the charts:
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Id. at HEW0003009.

Abbott’s goal was to reduce benefits to levels that would place Abbott between the 25"
and 50" percentile of its competitors. Pl. Ex. 4 at HEW002175; Pl. Ex. 5 at HEW2035. Despite
aiming for mediocrity, Miles White intended to convey the message that Abbott had historically
emphasized to employees. “[w]e have richer benefits than most” and “[o]ur benefits will
continue to be among the best vs. other companies.” Pl. Ex. 6 aa HEW001987; see also Pl. Ex. 2
(Williams Tr.) at 134-138. Abbott’ s efforts culminated in avariety of cost-saving changes to the
pension and retiree medical plans, including requiring retirees to contribute more in copayments
for retiree medical care and increasing the early retirement age from 50 to 55. PI. Ex. 7.

At the same time that Abbott was investigating and implementing the reductionsto its
benefits programs, White and Freyman were analyzing potential spin candidates. Hewitt had
identified three major factors contributing to Abbott’ s retirement woes: headcount, interest rates,
and rate of return on investments. Pl. Ex. 43 at HEW000250. One of those factors — headcount —
was within Abbott’s control,? and between December 2002 and June 2003, White and Freyman

focused on |1
I 1. Ex. 8 at A016317; .

Ex. 9 (White Tr.) at 36-37. Abbott analyzed the cost of benefits with respect to these potential

spin candidates. See PI. Ex. 32 (I

*The Hewitt report showed that Abbott’ s total headcount had grown from 47,209 in 2000 to
55,179 in 2003. Spinning the 14,000 employees would therefore cut Abbott’ s headcount by a quarter.
4



